Public Document Pack

Contact: Sangeeta Brown
Resources Development Manager
Direct: 020 8379 3109
Mobile: 07956 539613
e-mail: sangeeta.brown@enfield.gov.uk

SCHOOLS FORUM
Meeting to be held from 17:00 on 14 June 2017
Venue: Chace Community School, Churchbury Lane, Enfield, EN1 3HQ
(NOTE: Sangeeta Brown, Resources Development Manager - 07956 539613)

Schools Members:
Governors:
Ms I Cranfield (Primary), Ms Ellerby (Primary), Mrs J Leach (Special),
Mrs L Sless (Primary), Mr T McGee (Secondary), Vacancy (Primary)
Headteachers:Ms H Ballantine (Primary), Mr D Bruton (Secondary), Ms M Hurst
(Pupil Referral Unit), Mr B Goddard (Secondary), Ms H Knightley
(Primary), Ms H Thomas (Primary), Ms L Whitaker (Primary), Ms G
Weir (Special)
Academies: Ms L Dawes, Ms A Nicou, Vacancy
Non-Schools Members:
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
16 - 19 Partnership
Teachers’ Committee
Education Professional
Head of Behaviour Support
Early Years Provider

Tbc
Mr K Hintz
Mr J Jacobson
Ms C Seery
Ms J Fear
Ms C Gopoulos

Observers:
Cabinet Member
School Business Manager
Education Funding Agency

Cllr A Orhan
Ms A Homer
Mr Owen

MEMBERS ARE INVITED TO ARRIVE AT 16:45
WHEN SANDWICHES WILL BE PROVIDED
ENABLING A PROMPT START AT 17:00

AGENDA

1

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND MEMBERSHIP
To note:
a) Apologies from Cllr Orhan
b) Reported that:
- Mr Peter De Rosa term of office as the Special school
representative had come to an end and Ms Weir had been
nominated to take over the vacated position;
- A nomination for the Academy/free School vacancy had been
received from Mr Aidan Sadgrove, One Degree Academy.
- Nominations were being sought for the primary governor vacancies
from the Member Governor Forum.
The Forum was being asked to confirm their acceptance of the nominations
for the vacant positions.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or
non-pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda.

3.

ITEM FOR DECISION
a) Election of Chair of the Schools Forum for the municipal year
(2017/18)
b) Election of Vice Chair of the Schools Forum for the municipal year
(2017/18)

4.

MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)
a) Schools Forum meetings held on 8 March 2017.
b) Matters arising from these minutes.

5.

ITEM FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR DECISION (Pages 7 - 26)
a)
b)
c)
d)

Budget Outturn – 2016/17
Pupils with High Needs in Mainstream Schools:Update
Dedicated Schools Grant – 2017/18: Analysis
Schools Balances for 2016/17 & Individual Schools Budget Update for
2017/18

6.

WORKPLAN (Pages 27 - 28)

7.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

8.

FUTURE MEETINGS

2

a) To note meeting planned for 5 July has been cancelled;
b) Date of next meeting is Wednesday 20 September 2017 at 5:30pm,
venue to be confirmed;
c) Proposed dates for future meetings:
 8 November 2017
 6 December 2017
 17 January 2018
 7 March 2018
 9 May 2018 (Provisional)
 11 July 2018 (Provisional)
9.

CONFIDENTIALTY
To consider which items should be treated as confidential.

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING

Held on Wednesday 8 March 2017 at Chace Community School
Schools Members:
Governors:
Ms I Cranfield (Primary) Chair, Vacancy (Primary), Mrs J Ellerby (Primary),
Mrs J Leach (Special), Mrs L Sless (Primary), Mr T McGee (Secondary)
Headteachers: Ms H Ballantine (Primary), Mr D Bruton (Secondary), Mr P De Rosa (Special), Ms M
Hurst (Pupil Referral Unit), Mr B Goddard (Secondary), Ms H Knightley (Primary),
Ms H Thomas (Primary), Ms L Whitaker (Primary), Ms S Quartson (Primary)
Academies:

Ms L Dawes (Secondary), Ms A Nicou, Vacancy

Non-Schools Members:
Early Years Provider
16 - 19 Partnership
Teachers’ Committee
Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Head of Behaviour Support
Education Professional
Observers:
Cabinet Member
School Business Manager
Education Funding Agency
Also attending:
Chief Education Officer
Assistant Finance Business Partner
Head of Budget Challenge
Resources Development Manager
Resources Development Officer

Ms C Gopoulos
Mr K Hintz
Mr J Jacobson
Vacancy
Mr J Carrick
Ms J Fear
Cllr A Orhan
Ms A Homer
Mr O Jenkins
Ms J Tosh
Mrs L McNamara
Mr N Goddard
Mrs S Brown
Ms J Bedford
* Italics denote absence

1. MEMBERSHIP AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
a) Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Ms Hurst.
Reported:





Mr Clark had resigned from the Schools Forum, with immediate effect;
Mr Jonathan Jacobson had been appointed the Teachers’ Committee representative;
Ms Jo Fear was joining the Forum as the Education Professional;
Ms Quartson was covering the vacancy for the primary Headteacher vacancy.

The Chair welcomed Ms J Fear and Mr Jacobson to the Schools Forum.
On behalf of the Forum, the Chair expressed thanks to Mr Clark for his contribution towards
the work of the Forum.
b) Membership
Reported the pupil numbers from the January 2017 Pupil Census had been assessed. The
changes to the makeup of pupils across the different types of schools meant that there was
no longer a need to fill the vacancy for a primary Headteacher. Instead, a vacancy for an
academy representative was now required.
The Forum was advised that nominations would be sought to fill the academy vacancy.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no Declarations of Interest.
1

Page 2

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
a) Received and agreed the minutes of the meeting of the Schools Forum held on 18 January
2017, a copy of which is included in the Minute Book.
b) Matters arising from these minutes
There were no matters arising from the minutes.

4. ITEM FOR DISCUSSION & INFORMATION
a) Schools Budget 2017/18 - Update
Received a report summarising information on the Schools Budget 2017/18, a copy of which
is included in the Minute Book.
Reported at the last meeting, the Schools Forum had been advised that the DfE had
confirmed the initial Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) together with the data set to calculate
the 2017/18 budget shares for primary and secondary schools. At this meeting, the formula
factors and unit rates to be used to inform individual schools’ budgets were agreed and then
submitted to the Education Funding Agency (EFA). Notification had been received that the
EFA had approved the return.
The Schools Budget for 2017/18 was approved both by Cabinet and full Council.
This report sought:


The Forum’s support to the allocation of resources within the Schools, Early Years and
High Needs Blocks of the DSG for 2017/18;



The Forum’s approval to the services to be funded from the retained duties element of
the Education Services Grant (ESG) transferred to the DSG for 2017/18.

Noted
i)

A member commented that the Schools Forum had rejected the proposal to change the
funding arrangements for pupils with EHCPs in mainstream schools, but the Council had
chosen to override the Schools Forum’s recommendation. Due to the impact this change
was having on schools, the Council was being asked to reconsider and address this.
It was stated that the views of the Schools Forum had been noted and the Council was
planning a review of SEND provision; this included funding for pupils with EHCPs in
mainstream schools. In response to this, the member commented that the secondary
Headteachers were writing to all parents and the press about the change being
introduced by the Council and the impact these were having on schools;

Clerk’s Note: Mr Hintz arrived at this point.
ii) With an additional £1.56m provided by the Education Funding Agency, the DSG
allocation for 2017/18 was £320.64m. Once the effect of overspend from 2016/17 was
taken into account, the net available resources totalled £319.19m.
iii) The change in pressures since the last meeting included the removal of the funding of
£500k allowed for the rate revaluation. The Forum was advised that the revaluations had
been received and the funding allowed for any increase was not needed. It was
confirmed that the money released had been used to meet the increased cost of the
pupils with EHCPs in mainstream schools and the balance added to the High Needs
contingency pending a review of all SEND provision.
In response to a request, it was confirmed that any requests for pupil information or
notification of additional funding to be provided to schools would be sent to
Headteachers and not School Business Managers.
Action: Mrs McNamara
Clerk’s Note: Ms Quartson arrived at this point.
2

Page 3

iv) For the implementation of the Early Years National Funding Formula (EYNFF) for 3 and
4 year olds and also to meet the cost of extending the free entitlement to 30 hours for
working parents, an additional £3.38m had been received. The Government had
confirmed that 7% in 2017/18 and then 5% in 2018/19 of this funding could be retained
by local authorities to meet central costs.
There were no changes to the free nursery entitlement for 2 year olds.
A member commented that while the additional funding was welcomed, it did not cover
all the costs incurred by PVIs and there was a charge for many of the Local Authority
services that previously had been provided at no cost. In response, it was stated, with
the budget cuts, the Local Authority was limited to providing statutory services and had to
charge for non-statutory services and this included elements of training and
development.
v) The DfE had confirmed, due to demographic changes, an additional £1.2m for 2017/18
would be provided for the High Needs block; this amount was included in the overall
DSG allocation detailed above. This additional funding provided was welcomed;
however, it did not cover the increase in demand for supporting pupils with SEND and
the current projected overspend.
vi) To manage current overspend and ongoing pressure for supporting Post 16 students
with EHCPs, the Local Authority was planning to limit the educational support to three
years.
vii) The Government had confirmed that funding for statutory activities funded by the ESG
had been added to the DSG. The Local Authority had carried out an assessment of the
activities and their associated costs and sought approval for £985k to be retained to
meet the statutory duties.
Resolved to note the use and allocation of the DSG and agree to £985k to fund the statutory
duties that were previously funded from the ESG.
Clerk’s Note: Mr Bruton arrived at this point.
b) SEND and High Needs Places - Update
Received a report providing information for SEND & High Needs places, a copy of which is
included in the Minute Book.
Reported the paper provided a summary of the current provision used to support pupils with
SEND. Information was included on the proposed developments to reduce the number of
pupils placed in out-borough provision and to meet the increase in demand for supporting
pupils with SEND.
Noted:
i)

To meet the immediate demand for 2017/18, the Authority was working with existing
special schools to increase the number of places at each special school. The increase
was hampered by the space available to accommodate additional places. It was planned
to have some additional places at Durants, West Lea and possibly Oaktree, for the
coming year, and thus enable learners to remain in-borough.

ii) Special schools with outreach provision and mainstream schools with Additionally
Resourced Provision (ARP) were being asked to complete and submit a self-evaluation
form to the Authority. Once received, the forms would be reviewed to ensure that the
objectives and outcomes had been achieved.
In response to a question, it was confirmed that the review of the ARPs should ensure
that the ARP places being funded were being used to support pupils with SEND. Where
the places were not being utilised, consideration would be given to reallocating these
places elsewhere.

3

Page 4

Reported a correction to the information contained in the report: Highlands ARP should
read 13 pupils on roll as at January 2017.
iii) The planned increase in places at St Mary’s ARP had taken place and from September
2017, the ARP was able to cater for up to 16 pupils with SEMH.
It was planned, for 2017/18, to increase the provision at Durants (Winchmore) from 8 to
16 places.
Clerk’s Note: Mr N Goddard arrived at this point.
iv) There was a significant increase in the number of children with SEND in nursery and
below statutory school age requiring support.
v) There was a need to increase provision in-borough to enable some of the learners in outborough provision to move back into the borough and to meet the projected increase in
demand. The Authority had submitted two expressions of interest bids for two free
special schools to be built in the borough. The outcome of these bids was awaited.
vi) The Pupil Referral Unit (PRU) was due to move to their new building in the October half
term. The Local Authority was considering the feasibility of acommodating pupils with
ASD or SEMH in the existing building, as these areas of need were seeing the highest
increase in demand.
Clerk’s Note: Ms Dawes and Ms Whitaker arrived at this point.
vii) The sub-group supporting the implementation of the EYNFF was also considering the
development of an Inclusion Fund to support 3 and 4 year olds with SEND, who may not
have or be eligible to seek an EHCP. The funding available was £390k from the amount
identified to be delegated from the Early Years Block for 3 and 4 year olds and £50k for
Reception pupils not previously supported through a nursery placement from the High
Needs block. Following the Forum meeting, the draft criteria for seeking support would
be circulated, for comment, to all stakeholders. Upon receipt of comments, the
arrangements would be finalised and in place for April 2017.
In answer to a question as to whether children who had previously been supported would
be prioritised, it was stated that the decision would be based on need to ensure
allocations were made on an equitable basis. All applications will be considered by a
panel consisting of Headteachers and PVI managers.
viii) A member asked, as historically Enfield’s transport costs were among the highest in the
country, if there was an update on what savings had been achieved by reducing SEND
transport costs. It was stated that there was a project team working on this. The team
included brokers who assessed each application for travel assistance against a menu of
options for parents. In addition, an external provider was working with the Council to
provide a more cost-efficient service. The aim was to contain costs for the first year and
then achieve savings in subsequent years.
Resolved to note this report and further information on the work being done on transport
provision would be provided.
Clerks Note: Ms Knightley left at this point.
c) School Academy Transfers – Contribution towards Costs
Received a paper providing information on School Academy Transfers – Contribution
towards Cost, a copy of which is in the Minute Book.
Reported, with the changes due to the cessation of the ESG, the Council now needed
to consider implementing a charge as a contribution towards the costs incurred when a
school converted to an academy. The report circulated outlined the key stages of
schools converting to academy.

4

Page 5

The maintained schools representatives on the Schools Forum were asked to agree to
the inclusion of a clause in the Scheme of Financing that a charge of £5k plus £2 per
pupil to be incurred, as a contribution towards cost for support schools to convert.
Noted:
i)

Practices within other local authorities had been explored. It was found a range of
approaches had been undertaken by those local authorities already charging, and most
other local authorities were considering implementing a charge.

ii) In response to a comment by a member that the inclusion of £2 per pupil was exorbitant
and the converting school would not be able to manage this cost, it was stated that the
workload associated with academy conversions was variable. It was dependent on a
number of factors, e.g. number of schools converting, number of staff involved requiring
TUPE, PFI and other contractual arrangements and multiple sites. The level of
complexity meant considerable resources were required to support the conversion
process, especially if specialist professionals had to be commissioned.
iii) There were concerns that if several schools may wish to convert at the same time, the
Authority would not have sufficient resources to support the process and would need to
buy in services.
Resolved to agree that a clause be added to the Scheme of Financing, as a minimum £5k
plus £2 per pupil and, where possible, for actual costs to be recovered.
d) Scheme for Financing
Received a copy of the Scheme for Financing, a copy of which is in the Minute Book.
Reported the Scheme will be updated with the agreed changes from today’s meeting
and available from April 2017.
ACTION: Mrs Brown

5. ITEM FOR INFORMATION
a) DfE Consultation documents: schools and High Needs National Funding Formula –
Draft Response.
Received a report and a draft response to the DfE Consultation Documents: Schools and
High Needs National Funding Formula, a copy of which is in the Minute Book.
Reported the information provided included a summary of the impact of the proposals in the
Consultation Document for the implementation of the National Funding Formula (NFF) for
Enfield, and the draft responses.
The Forum was asked to comment on the draft responses to the proposals and confirm
whether the final response should be a joint response of the Schools Forum and the Local
Authority.
Noted
i)

All schools should be encouraged to respond to the proposed consultation document.

ii) The proposal for the funding floor was not acceptable and it was important that schools
should not see a reduction in funding. The minimum funding guarantee provided some
protection, but it was important that additional funding be provided to fund all schools
appropriately.
iii) There should not be separate transitional arrangements for the Central Services Schools
Block.
Resolved the draft responses would be updated and joint responses be submitted.
The Forum thanked officers for formulating the draft response.
Clerks Note: Mr Bruton left at this point.
5

Page 6

6.

WORKPLAN
It was agreed that a meeting be included on the Workplan on Tuesday 16 May to look at the
impact of budget decisions for individual schools’ budgets.
ACTION: Mrs Brown

7

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Ms Cranfield reported Ms Tosh was leaving the Council and Ms Quartson was returning to
Australia, so this was their last meeting of the Schools Forum.
The Forum thanked Ms Tosh for her for her outstanding support and expertise in advising the
Forum over a number of years and wished her well.
The Forum wished Ms Quartson well and thanked her for her considerable contribution to the
Schools Forum.
Ms Tosh thanked the Forum and confirmed that Mr Carrick would be taking over from her on the
Forum.
Ms Cranfield advised the Forum that she had decided she would resign from the Schools Forum
after the next meeting, owing to a number of other commitments that were taking up her time.
She wanted to advise the Forum at this meeting so that there would be sufficient time before the
next meeting for members to deliberate whether they would like to take over the role of Chair.
The Schools Forum applauded Ms Cranfield for her 43 years of voluntary service and dedication
to support improvements for Enfield’s children and young people. Ms Cranfield was thanked for
her hard work and contribution as Chair of the Schools Forum.

8

FUTURE MEETINGS
a) The date of the next meeting has been changed to Tuesday 16 May 2017 at 5.30pm at
Chace Community School.
b) Proposed dates for future meetings
 Wednesday 05 July 2017

9

CONFIDENTIALITY
No items were considered confidential. The meeting closed at 7.00pm.

6

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 REPORT NO.
MEETING TITLE AND DATE:
Schools Forum 14th June 2017

REPORT OF:

1

Agenda – Part: 1 Item: 5a

Subject:
2016/17 DSG Outturn Report

Director of Finance, Resources & Customer Services

Contact officer and telephone number:
Louise McNamara 020 8379 4720
E mail: louise.mcnamara@enfield.gov.uk

1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1. This report provides a review of the DSG revenue expenditure for 2016/17
which resulted in a year-end deficit of £3.196m being carried forward into
2017/18. A detailed breakdown of the outturn position is included as an
appendix to the report. The reasons for the key variances are detailed in the
report.

2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 To note the contents of the report.
2. 2016/17
RECOMMENDATIONS
3.
DSG OUTTURN POSITION
2.1 To note the contents of the report
3.1 The original estimate of DSG resources for 2016/17 amounted to £310.207m before the
academies recoupment adjustment. Budget allocations for 2016/17 were agreed within
this level of resources. As previously reported, subsequent adjustments resulted in the
final DSG allocation being £308.296m as the estimated Early Years Block adjustments
were significantly lower than estimated. The final position for 2016/17 is summarised in
the table below.
DSG Summary 2016/17

£’000s

Total Estimated DSG Resources 2016/17
Final Allocation – lower Early Years funding
Final DSG Resources 2016/17
Academies Recoupment Transfer
Early Years Block – Adj 2015/16 – rec’d 2016/17
Net DSG Resources 2016/17

310,207
-1,911
308,296
-65,253
202
243,245

* DSG resources include £1,234k EFA funding for post 16 special school pupils

4.

ACCUMULATED DSG CARRIED FORWARD

4.1

The following table sets out the cumulative DSG deficit position as at 31 March
2017.

Page 8

Balance brought forward 1 April 2016
Balance applied in 2016/17
Two Year Old Trajectory Funding
Contingency Funding 2016/17
High Needs Contingency
Early Years Adj 2015/16 (rec’d in 2016/17)
Total Contingency Funding 2016/17
2016/17 overspend
Total 2016/17 Carry Forward

£’000s
1,204
-136
1,037
202

1,103
2,307
-5,503
-3,196

5.

REASONS FOR VARIATIONS FROM ORIGINAL BUDGET

5.1

The outturn DSG position for 2016/17 shows a deficit carry forward of £3,196m due
to overspends totalling £5.503m in some budget areas during the financial year. The
following table provides an analysis of the key budget variances and those areas
where the actual outturn position is significantly different to that projected at the
January 2017 meeting.
2016/17 Outturn Analysis
Additional DSG Funding Available
Due to Early Years funding adj for 2015/16 made in 2016/17
Early Years PVI – 2 Year Olds / 3 & 4 Year Olds
Underspend due to lower take up of places
Early Years Schools – 3 & 4 Year Olds
Underspend due to lower take up of places
Schools Block - Rates
Underspend due to academy conversions and in year adjustments
Schools Block – Growth Fund
Underspend due to contingency for emerg provision not being required
Schools Block – Maternity Reimbursement Scheme
Overspend due to high level of reimbursements
High Needs – Outborough SEN Placements
Overspend due to increase in demand for places
High Needs – Speech Therapy
Overspend due to increase in cost for speech therapy
High Needs – Exceptional Needs
Overspend reflects an in year increase in EHCPs
High Needs – Post 16 SEN
Overspend reflects increase in demand for post 16 SEN support
High Needs – Home and Hospital Service
Overspend due to increased costs in 2015/16 and 2016/17
High Needs – New Special School Provision
Creation of additional places at Waverley and Durants
Behaviour Support
Overspend mainly relating to hospital education costs

6. 2017/18 MONITORING POSITION
6.1 DSG 2017/18

£’000s
202
-787
-99
-532
-105
143
3,975
468
718
606
161
422
129

Page 9
During the 2017/18 budget setting process the 2016/17 DSG overspend was
estimated to be £1.457m and this was funded from the 2017/18 allocation. The
increased deficit position at the end of 2016/17 will result in an overspend in
2017/18. A detailed budget monitor for 2017/18 will be carried out in July and this
information will be presented at the September meeting.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 11

DSG Budget Outturn Position 2016/17
Jan 17 SF
Funding Available 2016/17
Total 2015/16 DSG Carry Forward
Less 2YO Trajectory Funding
2016/17 Early Years Adj for 2015/16

£000

Outturn
£000

Variance
£000

1,204
155 -

1,204
136
202

19
202

Total Bal Available (incl £800k Autisn Fund and £105k Schl Fin Diff Contingency)

1,049

1,270

221

High Needs Contingency 2016/17 Budget

1,037

1,037

-

Total Contingency Available 2016/17

2,086

2,307

221

2016/17 Pressures

-

£000

-

£000

£002

-236
0
-530
75
58
-50
-47
0
0
0
-87
-817 -

-787
-99
-532
86
90
-2
2
-105
68
143
-39
1,173 -

-551
-99
-2
11
32
48
49
-105
68
143
48
356

770
302
621
162
0
828

2,356
1,414
112 93 468
606 -

1,586
1,112
509
69
468
222

149
80
80
60
170
305
64
770

137 80
81
61
116 306
129
718 -

12

General Pressures/Underspends
Early Years - PVI placements for 2YO and 3/4YO lower than estimated
Early Years - school placements for 3/4YO lower than estimated
Rates - saving due to academy conversions & in year revaluations
Asset Management - securiry staff costs that cannot be capitalised
Unplaced Pupils - higher learner nos and increased college costs
Pres School Support - lower premises costs/staff vacancy
Children with Learning Disabilities - staff vacancies
Growth Fund
Early Years Pupil Premium
Maternity Reimbursements
Miscellaneous Underspends
TOTAL GENERAL PRESSURES/UNDERSPENDS
High Needs Pressures
Outborough Provision
Independent Day Placements
Independent Residential Placements
Other LA Special Schools
Other LA Mainstream Support
Speech Therapy
Post 16 High Needs

2,367

In Borough Provision
Additional Allocatiion - St Marys ARP
Home & Hospital Service Overspend 2015/16
Home & Hospital Service Overspend 2016/17
ASA Service - Balance of Funding
Durants - Contrib to building work - addit 5 places Sept 16
Waverley - Revenue Costs for EY Provision - addit 16 places wef Sept 16
Behaviour Support Service (incl cost of educ for CAMHS in patients)
Exceptional Needs Support (incl est for Aut/Spr terms)

1
1
54
1
65
52

TOTAL HIGH NEEDS PRESSURES

4,360

6,676

2,315

TOTAL OVERSPEND 2016/17

3,543

5,503

1,959

Funding Available 2016/17

2,086

2,307

221

FINAL DSG Monitoring Outturn Position 2016/17

1,457

3,196

1,738

07/06/17

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\2\9\AI00039928\$3ylfhaus.xlsx
Outturn Summary 1617 (rev)

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 13

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 REPORT NO. 2
Item: 5b

MEETING TITLE AND DATE:

Subject: Pupils with High Needs in
Mainstream Schools

Schools Forum 14 June 17

REPORT OF:
Executive Director of Schools & Children’s Services
Contact officer: name and email:
Sangeeta Brown
E-mail: sangeeeta.brown@enfield.gov.uk

Wards: All

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report provides an update on the review carried out to assess the impact of the changes to the
funding arrangements for supporting pupils with high needs in mainstream schools.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
The Forum is asked to note and comment this report.

3 BACKGROUND
3.1 When the DfE introduced the current funding arrangements, in 2013/14, the main schools’ funding
formula included the concept of notional SEND, rather than identifying SEND funding as a formula
factor. At this time, local authorities were required to specify and report on how much of the
Schools block funding received by schools constituted the notional SEND budget.
3.2 The DfE’s expectation in developing the SEND funding arrangements was for the education cost
for pupils with SEND would be met jointly by educational institutes and local authorities. Table 1
below illustrates the DfE requirements for:
 School to fund the per pupil amount (Element 1) and additional support (Element 2)
 Local authorities: to fund any top for pupils with Education Health and Care plans (EHCP)
requiring support costing more than £6k (Element 3).
Table 1: SEND Funding
Pre SEND & AP
Specialist
Settings

Individual Setting

Individual School budget:

budget: Per Pupil
Individual

Post 16 Funding block

Per Pupil (AWPU) funding

All Settings

funding

Setting
Individual School budget:

budget:

Individual Setting

Contribute 1st £6k to

£10k per

Budget: Contribute

support all pupils with SEND

agreed place

1st £6k to support all

from Notional SEND

pupils with SEND

3.3 Local Arrangements from 2013/14

& commissioned places

Block

LA Top up funding for support cost above £6ks for each pupil with SEND

Needs

from Notional SEND

High

Education

Core

Additional Support
Top Up

Element 1:

Element 2:
Element 3:

Block

Needs

Schools block

Mainstream Schools

High

Post SEND & LLD

Page 14
Enfield’s historical spend was considered and used to report to the DfE on the amount of notional
SEND within the Schools block.
3.4 Following consultation and the views of the Schools Forum, it was agreed that the Local Authority
would provide the full cost, that is, the notional SEND (Element 2) and top up (Element 3) for all
pupils with SEND from the High Needs block. The reason, this was initially agreed was because
the DfE proposals did not allow any flexibility within the funding formula to support the more
inclusive schools. So, schools considered it fairer to meet the full costs of all pupils.
3.5 For 2014/15, following considerable lobbying, the DfE changed their initial requirements to enable
local authorities to support the more inclusive schools. The revised guidance to support inclusive
school confirms:
Where individual pupils require additional support that costs more than £6,000, the excess should
be met by top-up funding associated with the individual pupil. Top-up funding rates are for local
authorities to agree with schools and academies, and should reflect both the needs of the
individual and the cost of meeting those needs.
Local authorities should continue to provide additional funding outside the main funding formula for
mainstream schools and academies on a consistent and fair basis where the number of their high
needs pupils cannot be reflected adequately in their formula funding. They should define the
circumstances in which additional funding will be provided from their high needs budget.
Similarly, additional funding can also be provided where there are a disproportionate number of
pupils with a particular type of SEND. For example, a primary school may have developed a
reputation for meeting the needs of high achieving pupils with autistic spectrum disorder, or pupils
with physical disabilities, and it is not possible to target additional funding to the school through the
prior attainment or other factors in the local formula.
It was decided not to amend the local arrangements to reflect the new changed guidance until the
proposals for the national funding formula had been published and known.
3.6 In December 2016, the DfE published proposals for the national funding formula and these
confirmed:
 The continuation of the notional SEND budget within the Schools Block;
 The use the spending plans (excluding any in-year overspend) in 2017/18 to inform future
budgets for the Schools, Central and High Needs Block;
 Reducing flexibility in movement of funds between the DSG blocks.
For these reasons and also the on-going pressure on the high needs block, the Authority decided
not to continue to fund the notional SEND (Element 2) for all pupils with an EHCP and only fund
where a school had a disproportionate number of pupils with high level of SEND.
3.7 When considering and developing the new arrangements, the Authority sought information from
other local authorities (OLAs) to ascertain whether other authorities:
 Met the notional SEND (Element 2) for all pupils with EHCP;
 Had arrangements to fund schools with a disproportionate number of pupils with SEND, or;
 The notional SEND budget did not adequately reflect the cost of pupils with EHCP.
From the information obtained from OLAs, it was found:
 No OLAs funded the notional SEND (Element 2) for pupils with EHCP.
 Some OLAs had local arrangements for supporting inclusive schools with a disproportionate
number of pupils;
 Some OLAs had arrangements in place to test and ensure that their funding formula treated all
schools fairly.
3.8 The changes in the funding arrangements which the Authority then decided to implement meant a
reduction in funding for schools from the High Needs block.

Page 15
3.9 As requested by the Schools Forum, this paper provides an update on the notional SEND funding
within the individual school budgets and considers possible options to ameliorate the reductions in
funding for schools from the High Needs block.

4 UPDATE
4.1 Notional SEND (Element 2)
The notional SEND budget, as reported to the DfE, has been reviewed to assess:
 How the use of historical factors and proportions compares with OLAs;
 Whether all schools receive sufficient funding for the notional SEND (Element 2) through the
formula to support all pupils with SEND including those with EHCP.
To carry out the review, the DfE summary of local authorities’ formulae and unit values was used.
The DfE document can be found on the DfE website at: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/schoolsblock-funding-formulae-2017-to-2018.
The review highlighted:
 The pupil led factors used and the percentages applied by each local authority varied
considerably with some authorities choosing to use one or two factors and other choosing to
use all the available factors.
 Following a comparison of the factors and percentage used by Enfield with our statistical
neighbours and outer London Authorities, it was found that the majority of the factors and
percentages applied by Enfield’s were within the range used by OLAs with the exception of the
IDACI element of deprivation which, where used, Enfield’s percentage is considerably lower
than the OLAs.
The total funding attributable to notional SEND (Element 2) in Enfield is £22.1m (9%). This is
average when compared to our statistical neighbours and outer London authorities.
The DfE analysis states ‘ …. at overall local authority level, the notional SEN budget in 2017 to 2018
varies as a percentage of the total schools block formula allocation (before the application of MFG, capping
and scaling). Some 125 (82%) of authorities are allocating between 5% and 15% of schools block funding as
notional SEN.
The overall percentage of formula allocation which is designated as the notional SEN budget across all local
authorities is 10%, the same as in 2014 to 2015, 2015 to 2016 and 2016 to 2017. The median notional SEN
allocation is 8.8%. However, as the chart shows, like last year there is a wide variation across local
authorities’.

Appendix A provides a copy of the full local analysis of the factors and percentages used by
Enfield’s Statistical Neighbours and outer London authorities.
4.3 Analysis
The analysis confirmed that the funding provided through the formula and the notional SEND
(element 2) was fair and provided sufficient funding for all schools to meet the needs of all pupils,
including those with an EHCP.
When the new arrangements, of funding above average incident (see appendix B) are factored
into the funding provided to schools, then all schools receive sufficient funding to meet the needs
of all pupils including those with an EHCP.
4.4 Financial Position
Generally, when considering transitional arrangements for a formula review, the losses are usually
funded by capping the gains. In this instance, this was not considered formula review and there
were no gainers.
As advised elsewhere on this agenda, the latest monitor for the High Needs block is forecasting an
overspend of £1.8m, but based the trend in previous years is likely to increase during the year. If
transitional arrangements are to be considered, then these need to be considered carefully with an
acknowledgement that they will add to the projected overspend.

Page 16
4.5 Options for transitional support
Due to the implementation of the national funding formula, it is unlikely that resources will be
available to offset this overspend. For this reason, the Authority will need to recommend a cap of
£200k for any transitional support.
The options, which have been identified, are as follows:
(a) Protect schools seeing a reduction in funding above 50% by limiting the reduction to 42%;
(b) Protect schools seeing a reduction in funding above £50k by funding 20% of the reduction;
(c) Protect the impact of the change for schools with more than 6 pupils with EHCP by funding
17% of the reduction;
(d) Protect schools that are adversely impacted by the change when compared with their notional
SEND budget (Element 2) (this excludes the per pupil amount and £12k in lump sum for
notional SEND). This option sought to:
 quantify the notional SEND budget allocated to each school and
 the impact of the change on the funding provided under Element 2.
For example:
School
A

Change due

FSM

IDACI

EAL

PA

Mob

new Formula

(30%)*

(4%)*

(20%)*

(100%)*

(25%)*

£24,000

£4,543

£4.6

£1,296

£24,912

-

*

Total

Balance

£30,755

£6,755

Transitional
Support
-

Percentage of funding ascribed for Notional SEND

This showed that there was no detrimental effect for any school.
(e) Protect schools that had experienced a detrimental effect, if an assumed percentage of the
total AEN budget was deemed to support high level of SEND. This option sought to:
 Quantify the total AEN budget, then;
 The impact of the changes if assumed 22% of the total AEN budget supported notional
SEN.
For example:
School

Change for

FSM

IDACI

EAL

PA

Mob

Total

new Formula

Total

Total

Total

Total

Total

A

£24,000

£15,143

£115

£6,479

£24,912

-

£46,649

B

£24,000

£107,513

£14,654

£71,307

£75,571

0

£269,045

Balance 22%
Element 2
-£13,737

Transitional
Support
£13,737

£35,190

Appendix B provides information on the effect of each option for transitional support.
5

The information and proposals contained in this report were discussed with the Education
Resources Group and the Headteachers’ view was that transitional support should be provided
retrospectively and their preferred option was Option C (as detailed in paragraph 4.5 above). It
was highlighted that any transitional support would add further financial pressure on the High
Needs block, but the Headteachers’ felt schools should be supported with this change.
Furthermore, it was requested that the total available for transitional support should be increased
to £400k to recognise the level of change in funding schools were being required to manage.

6

The Authority’s view is that if the Forum considers that transitional support should be provided that
the total funding available should remain at £200k. This is because of the increased pressure
that the transitional support will add to the High Needs block. If the Forum is of the view that the
total sum available should be increased to £400k, then the Authority would consider this and
would ask the Forum to be mindful that they will need to consider and authorise a greater
overspend of the High Needs block.

7

Members are asked to consider the proposal for transitional support and, if pursued, agree to the
DSG overspending.

-

Page 17
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 REPORT NO. 3
Item: 5c

MEETING TITLE AND DATE:
Schools Forum 14 June 17

REPORT OF:

Subject: Dedicated Schools Grant
2017/18: Analysis

Executive Director of Schools & Children’s Services
Contact officer: name and email:
Sangeeta Brown
E-mail: sangeeeta.brown@enfield.gov.uk

Wards: All

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report is intended to support the wider discussion on the impact of the budget decisions on
individual schools with data on how Enfield’s mainstream school funding formula compares to the
formulae used by Enfield’s Statistical Neighbours, Outer London authorities and nationally.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
The Forum is asked to note this report.

3 INTRODUCTION
3.1 In previous years, the Forum has received benchmarking data taken from information published in
the Section 251 Budget Statement as required by Section 251 of the Apprenticeships, Skills,
Children and Learning Act. This information will not be available until later this year. For this
reason, this paper does not include a detailed analysis of the planned spend of the Dedicated
Schools Grant (DSG) funding, but includes analysis of the allocation of DSG to local authorities
and the subsequent funding formulae used by local authorities.
3.2 The data on the DSG allocation and funding formulae has been taken from a summary published
by the DfE, which includes specifically the value of the indicators used (the formula unit values)
and the proportion of funding allocated via each indicator. The DfE information can be found on the
DfE website at: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/schools-block-funding-formulae-2017-to-2018.
3.3 To support the discussion on the impact of the budget decisions on individual schools, this paper
compares Enfield’s DSG and funding formulae with Enfield’s Statistical Neighbours, Outer London
authorities and nationally.

4 NATIONAL ANALYSIS
Appendix A attached provide information of the analysis carried out in respect of comparing
Enfield’s DSG allocation and funding formulae with Enfield’s Statistical Neighbours, Outer London
authorities and nationally. When considering the data, Members should be mindful of the context
for setting the local arrangements, such as:
(a) Historic decisions on the formula allocations, including how funding for new responsibilities was
delegated to schools;
(b) Local decisions on how funding was allocated across the various DSG Blocks;
(c) The balance of funding between primary and secondary sectors;
(d) The level of funding received by each authority;
4.1 DSG Analysis
In summary, the DSG analysis considered the proportion of funding provided across the three
blocks and summary of the key points are detailed in the table below.

Page 18
Table 1: DSG: Percentage of Funding Allocated
Factor

Blocks

England
(150 LAs)

Outer
London
(19 LAs)

Statistical
Neighbours
(11 LAs)

Schools

41

2

4

Schools
Schools

23
39

6
1

6
3

51

8

5

21

1

3

62

7

9

47

5

4

49

9

5

Pupil numbers
(headcount)
Unit of funding
Total Mainstream
3 & 4 Year olds
Entitlement

Total EY

Early
Years
Early
Years
Early
Years
Early
Years

Total High Needs

High
Needs

2 Year olds Entitlement
Disability Access Fund

Comments
The Analysis indicates:
 Nationally Enfield is funded
in the upper third across all
authorities.
 for the Schools Block:
- Well above in comparison
to Outer London
- above average in
comparison our Statistical
Neighbours.
 High Needs block is
average when compared
with Outer London or
statistical neighbours.

4.2 Schools Block Analysis
The analysis of the Schools block compared the percentage of total funding and also the unit value
for each of the formula factors used by Enfield.
Formula Factor Percentages: The table below ranks Enfield, in descending order, against the
percentage of funding allocated for each of the factors used in the local formula. In terms of the
layout of the table:



The number of Local Authorities in each category is shown in the table header;
Enfield’s position was measured against the number of LAs using that factor.

Table 2: Percentage of Funding Allocated for Each Factor
Factor

England
(150 LAs)

Outer
London
(19 LAs)

Statistical
Neighbours
(11 LAs)

Pupil Led
Funding

47

12

4

Basic
Entitlement

35

7

6

Deprivation

89

9

8

26 out of 137
97 out of 143
23 out of 66

10
15
8

7
8
6

122 out of
151

10

6

Rates

31 out of 151

9

4

PFI

39 out of 85

5

4

Growth Fund

59 out of 131

14

10

MFG

28 out of 148

7

5

EAL
Prior Attainment
Mobility
Lump Sum

Comments

Nationally: above average, Statistical
neighbours: average Outer London - below
average
Enfield is above average. This reflect the key
principle to ensure sufficient funding provided
through the per pupil entitlement to ensure
stability at individual school level.
Nationally: below average
Statistical neighbours: below average
Outer London: average
The indicators used by Enfield are reflective of
the local decisions of least turbulence when
implementing the new funding arrangements.
Nationally: Below average
Outer London & Statistical Neighbours:
Average
Nationally Statistical Neighbours: Above
average
Outer London: Average
This could be reflective of higher rates or
number of maintained schools in each LA
Nationally: Below average
Statistical Neighbours: Above Average
Outer London: Average
Nationally & Outer London: Below average
Statistical Neighbours: Well below average
Enfield is above average.

Page 19

Formula Factor Rates: The table below ranks Enfield, in descending order, against each of the
per pupil factors used in the local formula.
Table 3: Formula Factors: Unit Values
Factor

Sector

England
(151)

Outer London
(18)

Prim

19

4

Statistical
Neighbours
(11)
11

AWPU - KS3

Second

38

10

6

AWPU – KS4
FSM
IDACI
FMS
IDACI
EAL
EAL
Prior
Attainment
Prior
Attainment
Mobility
Mobility
Lump Sum
Lump Sum

Second
Prim

Primary
Second
Prim

36
24 – FSM
106 (Average)
26- FMS
105 (Average)
83
46
76

7
3 – FSM
12 (Average)
5 – FMS
13 (Average)
11
9
12

5
2 – FSM
7 (Average)
7 – FMS
7 (Average)
7
6
5

Second

74

14

4

Prim
Second
Prim
Second

35
22
19
19

8
6
5
5

6
2
4
4

AWPU

5

Second

Comments

Enfield is above average
Nationally: £1,559 below
maximum
Statistical Neighbours &
Outer London : £454 below
maximum

This reflects the decision to
use FSM as the main proxy
for supporting deprivation.
The indicators used by
Enfield are reflective of the
local decisions for the new
funding arrangements to
provide least turbulence.

Local Analysis

5.1 The funding delegated, inclusive of the minimum funding guarantee, to individual mainstream
schools, academies and free schools in Enfield through the DSG in 2017/18 has been compared
with funding delegated in 2016/17. The aim of the comparison was to assess the impact of any
national or local requirements and, also any contextual changes at individual school level.
It should be noted that the information:
 used for the comparison refers solely to the revenue funding provided through the DSG and
the pupil premium grant funding distributed through the Local Authority to each school;
 for academies and free schools includes funding allocated through the DSG. It should be
noted that pupil numbers used are estimated and therefore not totally reliable. For this
reason, it has not been possible to do a full comparison, which includes academies and free
schools.
 for special schools has not been included. This is because special schools are funded on a
place plus approach and the funding is agreed separately as part of the arrangements for
the High Needs block.
Members are reminded that data used to allocate funding to individual schools is informed by the
October Pupil Census as supplied by the Education Funding Agency. For this reason, the data
may not necessarily match the local dataset held by either individual schools or the Local
Authority.
The comparison was analysed to assess the impact of any contextual changes at individual
school level. The attached Appendix B is in three parts and includes school level information on:
 per pupil funding;
 total funding from each of the blocks that forms the DSG and pupil premium funding

Page 20
delegated;
 data such as pupil numbers, numbers of pupils identified for free school meals, IDACI, prior
attainment, English as an additional language and mobility funding.
This section of the report highlights the key areas from the analysis carried out.
5.2 Table 4 below shows the range of changes in per pupil funding between 2016/17 and 2017/18,
excluding pupil premium for maintained schools. In line with the school funding regulations, it can
be seen there is very little variation in the per-pupil funding between the two years. This is due to
the effect of the minimum funding guarantee and lack of local flexibility to interrogate and inform
change.
Table 4: Comparison of Per Pupil Funding
Sector

2015/16
Per Pupil Funding

2016/17
Per Pupil Funding

£

£

Primary

Lowest
Average
Highest

3,851
4,498
6,101

3,866
4,480
6,099

Secondary

Lowest
Average
Highest

4,907
5,638
6,615

4,857
5,639
6,617

Table 3 below summaries the numbers of maintained schools, above and below the average per
pupil funding for their delegated budget from the Schools Block 2016/17.
Table 5: Distribution of Schools Block funding
Sector

Primary
Secondary

No of schools
above
average per
pupil funding

No of schools
below average
per pupil
funding

28

31

4

5

5.3 Members will note, at individual school level, there are variations in funding between 2016/17 and
2017/18. There are different reasons for these variations and could include changes in:
 pupil numbers: any increases or decreases will lead to a reduction of direct funding, but also
the proportion of non-pupil led factors, such as lump sum, attributable against each pupil;
 contextual changes, such as free school meal eligibility;
 ceasing to host an ARP or Nurture Group.
6

Members are asked to note this report.

Page 21

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 REPORT NO. 4
Item: 5d

MEETING TITLE AND DATE:
Schools Forum –

Subject:

School Balances 2016-17 and
Individual Schools Budget 2017-18:
Update

REPORT OF:
Executive Director of Children’s Services

Contact officer: Sangeeta Brown
E mail: sangeeta.brown@enfield.gov.uk

Wards: All
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1. This report provides information on:
 balances reported by maintained schools as at 31 March 2017;
 update on individual schools budgets

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 The Forum is asked to note and comment on the contents of this report
3

SUMMARY OF SCHOOL BALANCES 2017/18

3.1 School revenue balances, including community focussed activities, at 31 March 2017 totalled
£5,535m compared to balances brought forward in 1 April 2016 which totalled £8,591m. This
excludes schools that converted to become academies during the year. Details by sector are set
out in
Table 1: Sector Balances:
Sector

Balances at
31/03/2015
£’000s

Primary
Secondary
Special (inc ESTC)
Total

9,017
(1,967)
1,540
8,591

% of Budget
2014/15
%
5.7
-1.9
8.4
3.4

Balances at
31/03/2016
£’000s

% of Budget
2015/16
%

Net Movement
in Year
£000’s

7,641
(3,453)
1,347
5,535

5.1
-5.1
7.5
2.3

-1,376
-1,486
-193
-3,055

3.2 The overall sector percentage and the range of balances are detailed in Table 2:
Table 2: Range of School Balances
Sector
Primary
Secondary
Special

Sector
Average
5.1%
-5.1%
7.5%

Range of
balances
-0.19 to 14.3%
-32.7 to 3.33%
-7.2 to 16 %

Details the balances on a school-by-school basis can be found in the appendix A.

4. ANALYSIS OF BALANCES
4.1 Table 3 provides details of the balances from 20011/12 to 2015/16 for the three sectors, with
balances for:
 Primary schools:

-1-

Page 22



A total of 39 (68%) of schools have reported a reduction in their revenue balances with
one school reporting a very small deficit at the year-end;
A total of 18 (32%) of schools have seen a slight increase in their revenue balances. Of
these schools, eight are 1 or 2 forms of entry.



Special schools:
 Out of the seven schools, six schools (86%) have reported a reduction in their revenue
balances with one school reporting a deficit position at year-end.



Secondary schools
 A total of seven schools (70%) have reported a reduction in their revenue balances with
five schools reporting a deficit position at year-end.
 Of the five schools in deficits, for four of the schools, this will be their second year of
reporting a deficit balance. The Authority has been meeting with these schools to support
them in developing deficit recovery plan. All these schools will be required to have a
recovery plan in place to support their three budget plan for 2017/18.
Table 3: Comparison of School Balances between 2012/13 and 2016/17
Sector
Primary
Secondary
Special
Total

2012/13
£’000s %
9,637 6.4
2,801 4.1
1,068 5.9
13,505 5.7

2013/14
£’000s %
7,849 6.1
1,580 2.3
1,402 8.6
10,832 5.1

2014/15
£’000s %
7,678 5.1
226 0.3
1,643 9.1
9,547 4.2

2015/16
£’000s %
9,017
5.9
-1,967
-2.8
1,540
8.4
8,591
3.4

2016/17
£’000s %
7,641 5.1
(3,453) -5.1
1,347 7.5
5,535 2.4

* These balances exclude schools that have converted to academies during the period covered.
4.2 Attached at appendix B are charts providing further information on balances retained by schools.
Analysis for individual schools reporting increases or decreases in balances was inconclusive.
The factors used for the funding formula found:
 no single factor accounted for the change in balances;
 the primary schools with no change or a slight increase in balances were those with little or
no change in pupil numbers and the per pupil factors used for the formula;
 the changes for calculating IDACI supported schools with the reduction in the number of
pupils eligible for free school meals;
 the removal of the 97% protection for top up funding for special schools may have been a
contributing factor for the reduction in balances.
5.

RECYCLING OF SCHOOL BALANCES

5.1 Since the implementation of the threshold for reporting on balances above 8% for Primary &
Special and 5% for Secondary schools, there has been a trend for high balances held by schools
to be reducing and, for 2016/17 16% of schools retained balances above the threshold. Table 4
summarises the numbers and percentage of schools above the threshold.
Table 4: Schools with Balances above the Upper Threshold:
Sector
Primary
Secondary
Special
Total

2015/16
No of
schools
15
0
3
18

2016/17
No of
schools
10
0
2
12

2016/17
% of schools
29%
18%
16%

5.2 In line with the Scheme, the Local Authority monitors and challenges schools with large
balances. It is in this context the Authority has written to seek information from those schools that
had not reported as part of the Quarter 3 return that they would be carrying forward funds above
the threshold of 8 and 5%. Information is awaited from some of these schools and when
received, it will be assessed and the outcome reported.

-2-

Page 23

6

Other Local Authorities

6.1 Similar to last year, other local authorities are report that the number of schools in deficit is
increasing. The make-up of schools in deficit may differ from Enfield, partly because of the
primary and secondary pupil funding ratio; that is if the ratio is higher for secondary, then the
probability of primary schools being deficit is greater and vice versa.
6.2 The DfE published their analysis of education and school spending for 2015/16 in December
2016. In this document, it was stated that “Local authority gross spend on schools, education and
children and young people’s services for 2015-16 is £41.0 billion, a reduction of £0.7 billion from
2014-15 (in nominal terms). Not adjusting for inflation, spending has fallen by 26% since 201011, while the number of local authority maintained schools fell by 22% over the same period.”
The balances held by Enfield’s statistical neighbours, outer London Authorities and nationally
was analysed and this indicated that:
 Total balances held by Enfield schools was below average;
 Number of schools and the total number in deficit were above average. This may partly be
due to Enfield having one of the highest number of maintained schools;
 The larger deficits are within the secondary sector and Enfield having the highest number of
maintained secondary schools compared to Outer London Authorities.
Further information is attached at appendix C.
6.3 When information for 2016/17 is published, this will be analysed and any changes reported to the
Forum.

7

Schools Budgets

7.1 Last year, the Forum had raised a concern about the cost pressures facing Enfield schools due
to the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) being provided on a flat-cash basis since 2011/12 and
schools being required to absorb the pressures from within existing resources. The Forum was
provided with information on the impact of these pressures for individual schools.
The following section provides an update on the position for 2017/18.
7.2 Working Budgets – 2016/17
In line with the requirements in the Scheme for Financing, three year budget plans were received
from all except three schools by the deadline. Table 5 below details the number of schools
reporting that they would not able to set a balanced budget over the three year period.
Table 5: Number of Schools with actual or projected deficit
Number of Schools with Actual or Projected Deficit
Sector

Projected

Actual

Projected

Actual

31-03-16

31-03-16

31-03-17

31-03-17

Primary

1

1

1

Secondary

4

5

Special

1

Total

6

In-year

Projected

Projected

Projected

31-03r-17

31-03-18

31-03-19

31-03-20

1

37

3 / (3)*

13 / (8)*

23

5

5

7

5/ (6)*

5 / (7)*

5

-

1

1

6

0 / (3)*

2 / (3)*

2

6

7

7

50

8 / (12)*

20 / (18)*

30

deficit

* The figures in bracket are those provided last year.

8

Based on the information provided and the assessment of the in-year deficits, there is a need for
close monitoring during the year. Where individual schools have experienced an in-year deficit,
Governing Bodies will need to review and consider remedial action.

8

DfE Efficiency Tools

-3-

Page 24

8.1 As previously reported, there is no financial support but, the Government has established a
number of tools to support schools in making efficiency and achieve value for money. This is
reiterated in the second stage consultation document on proposals for the national funding
formula. The guidance and tools include:
 the procurement centre: Provides guidance for schools to purchase goods & services
 School Efficiency Metric tool: Assist schools to improve efficiency relative to other schools
 Schools Financial Health Check: Providing information, guidance and data to support sound
financial management.
8.2 The School Efficiency Metric tool enables individual schools to gauge their efficiency based on
pupil attainment and the money the school receives for pupils
The tools measure the value added progress made by pupils in a school relative to the funding
per pupil. The information provided for each school includes: % of pupils with SEND, % Ever6
FSM, Value added score and funding per pupil. The total efficiency of a school is indicated by the
efficiency decile, from 1, being most efficient, to 10, being least efficient. Table 6 below details
the number of schools in each efficiency decile.
Table 6: Number of Schools in Each of the Decile of Schools
Decile

No of Primary

Decile

No of Secondary

Decile

Score

Schools

%

Schools

%

1

8

15%

2

20%

2

9

17%

2

20%

3

3

6%

1

10%

4

6

12%

2

20%

5

6

12%

2

20%

6

9

17%

-

-

7

3

6%

-

-

8

3

6%

1

10%

8

-

-

-

-

10

5

10%

-

-

Total

52

100%

10

100%

Information for Infant and Special school is not available on this tool. Further information on the
tool can be found at: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/schools-financial-efficiency-a-guide-togetting-started. Enfield’s analysis has highlighted 21 (34%) schools identified by the tool as
being in the bottom half of the decile scores: that is from 6 to 10.
8.3 The DfE has also developed guidance for governors when considering financial management.
The guidance can be found at: https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/schools-financialhealth-and-efficiency. The guidance has been used to develop a local recovery plan template for
schools in deficit to complete. The information that templates aims to provide and enable the
Governing Body to consider is:








Staff pay as a percentage of the budget
Average teacher & support staff pay and cost
Pupil teacher ratio & teacher contact ratio
Class sizes
Proportion of budget spent on the leadership team, staffing & non-pay expenditure
3-10 year budget projections
Assumptions and risks associated with projections

-4-

Page 25

The Schools in deficits are currently in the process of finalising the recovery document to support
their working budget. The template will be used to support future monitoring meetings between
the schools in deficit and the Local Authority.
8.4 Financial Forecast
This next section uses pupil data and benchmarking information from 2014/15 to project income
and expenditure for hypothetical primary, secondary and special schools to understand the effect
of the cost pressures on school expenditure.
(a) Pupil Numbers
Table 7 below details the pupil numbers used for funding purposes from 2013/14 to 2017/18.
Table 7: Pupil Numbers from 2013/14 to 2017/18
Sector

Pupil Numbers
2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

Primary

29,523

30,113

31,142

31,862

32,443

32,591

Secondary

18,639

18,012

17,844

17,896

18,307

19,093

529

538

587

591

636*

636*

48,691

48,663

49,573

50,349

51,386

52,320

Special
Total

* Does not include new places at West Lea and Durants / Minchenden

The current pupil projections are indicating that:
 Primary: The additions of new free schools means there is currently sufficient places.
 Secondary: there are surplus school places until 2018/19 and then if the current provision
doesn’t change then were will be a capacity gap, which will need to be bridged;
The need for additional places assumes that the additional forms of entry will be in line
with the Authority’s basic needs analysis and it cannot factor in the effect of new free
schools opening in areas where school places are not required
Special: given the ad-hoc nature of pupil requiring admission to placement with high needs, it
is difficult to project demand. The pressure for special schools places is the subject of
another agenda item.
(b) Income: As mentioned above, funding is being provided on flat cash basis for this year. Due
to the General Election and any changes in policy that may be introduced, income
projections have not yet been carried out.
(c) Cost pressures: Listed below are knows cost pressures at the time of writing this report.
Table 8: Known Cost Pressures
Pressures

2013/14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

Teachers Pay Award

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

Support Staff Pay Award

1%

-

1%

1%

1%

Teachers National Contrib.

-

-

-

3.4%

-

Support Staff National Contrib.

-

-

-

-

-

Teachers’ Pension Contrib.

-

-

2.3%

-

-

Support Staff Pension Contrib.

-

0.5%

0.5%

0.5%

3%

Apprenticeship Levy

-

-

-

-

0.5%

Rates

2018/19

2019/20

0.5%

0.4%

Whilst cost neutral for schools, there will impact on DSG

9. CONCLUSION
9.1 Members are asked to note and comment on this report.

-5-

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 27

Agenda Item 6

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 – REPORT NO. 5
Agenda – Part: 1

MEETING TITLE AND DATE:
Schools Forum – 14 June 2017

6

Subject:

Schools Forum: Workplan

REPORT OF:
Director of Children’s Services & Chief Education
Officer

Contact officer: Sangeeta Brown

Wards: All

E-mail: sangeeta.brown@enfield.gov.uk

Recommendation
To note the workplan.

Meetings

Officer

March 2017

School Budget 2017/18: Update
SEND & High Needs – Update
School Academy Transfers – Contribution towards Costs
Scheme for Financing
Schools &High Needs NFF - Draft Response

LM
JC
SB
SB
SB

June 2017

School Budget 2016/17 Outturn: Update
Pupils with High needs in Mainstream Schools
Dedicated Schools Grant – 2017/18: Analysis
Schools Balances – Update

LM
SB
SB
SB

September 2017

Schools Budget: 2017/18 – Monitoring
High Needs Review: Update
School Funding Arrangements (2018/19)
School Places – Update

SB
SB
SB
JC

October 2017

Schools Budget – Update (2017/18)
Schools Budget: 2018/19: Update
School Funding Arrangements (2018/19)
Schools Balances 2015/16
Central Services Budgets

LM
LM
SB
SB
JC

December 2017

Schools Budget: 2018/19: Update, Inc. De-delegation
School Funding Arrangements (2018/19)

LM
SB

January 2018

Schools Budget: 2018/19: Update
School Funding Arrangements
Central Services funding from DSG

LM
SB
SB

March 2018

Schools Budget: 2018/19: Update
High Needs Places

LM
SB

May / June 2018

Single Item Agenda - TBC

July 2018

Schools Budget – Update (2017/18)
School Funding Review (2017/18)
Funding Arrangements (2019/20)

LM
SB
SB

Dates of Meetings
Date

Time

Venue

20 September 2017
08 November 2017
06 December 2017
17 January 2018
07 March 2018
09 May 2018
11 July 2018

5:30 - 7:30 PM
5:30 - 7:30 PM
5:30 - 7:30 PM
5:30 - 7:30 PM
5:30 - 7:30 PM
5:30 - 7:30 PM
5:30 - 7:30 PM

TBC
TBC
TBC
TBC
TBC
TBC
TBC

Schools Forum Workplan

Comment

Version: SCS Final

This page is intentionally left blank

